# Marketing











# Office of the State Superintendent of Education Postsecondary and Career Education Division Career and Technical Education Department

Christina Grant, Ed.D. Interim State Superintendent of Education

# Antoinette Mitchell, Ph.D. Assistant Superintendent, Postsecondary and Career Education

# Kilin Boardman-Schroyer Deputy Assistant Superintendent, Postsecondary and Career Education

# Richard W. Kincaid State Director, Career and Technical Education

The purpose of this document is to communicate the required Career and Technical Education (CTE) academic standards for the Marketing Program of Study. The academic standards in this document are theoretical and performance-based. The standards contain content from Colorado, Maryland, Tennessee, and Texas and were validated by D.C. business and industry partners. All content is used with permission.

In addition to academic standards, OSSE has incorporated into this document Labor Market Information (LMI) definitions and explanations for the Program of Study; program aligned Industry Recognized Credentials; Work-Based Learning resources and requirements by course level; and a recommended equipment and supply list.

This document is intended for use by educational administrators and practitioners. A similar document is available for each state-approved CTE Program of Study.



# **Table of Contents**

Course Descriptions: Marketing	4
Industry Certifications	5
Work-Based Learning Examples and Resources	5
Labor Market Information Definitions and Data	6
Model Six-Year Plan: Marketing Error! Bookmark not o	defined.
Principles of Business, Marketing, and Marketing	8
Entrepreneurship	
Advertising	
Fashion Marketing	20
Social Media Marketing	23
Sports and Entertainment Marketing	
Practicum in Marketing	



Course Descriptions: Marketing				
Course Level	Course Information	Description		
Level I	Principles of Business, Marketing, and Finance OSSEID: 12051G1.0014 Grades: 9-12 Prerequisite: None Credit: 1	In Principles of Business, Marketing, and Marketing, students gain knowledge and skills in economies and private enterprise systems, the impact of global business, the marketing of goods and services, advertising, and product pricing. Students analyze the sales process and financial management principles. This course allows students to reinforce, apply, and transfer academic knowledge and skills to a variety of interesting and relevant activities, problems, and settings in business, marketing, and Marketing.		
Level II	Entrepreneurship OSSEID: 12053G1.0024 Grades: 10-12 Prerequisite: Principles of Business, Marketing, and Marketing Credit: 1	In Entrepreneurship, students will gain the knowledge and skills needed to become an entrepreneur. Students will learn the principles necessary to begin and operate a business. The primary focus of the course is to help students understand the process of analyzing a business opportunity, preparing a business plan, determining the feasibility of an idea using research, and developing a plan to organize and promote the business and its products and services. In addition, students will understand the capital required, the return on investment desired, and the potential for profit.		
Level III	Advertising OSSEID: 12165G0.5034 Grades: 11-12 Prerequisite: Entrepreneurship Credit: .5	Advertising is designed as a comprehensive introduction to the principles and practices of advertising. Students will gain knowledge of techniques used in current advertising, including print, broadcast, and digital media. The course explores the social, cultural, ethical, and legal issues of advertising, historical influences, strategies, media decision processes as well as integrated marketing communications, and careers in advertising and sales promotion. The course provides an overview of how communication tools can be used to reach target audiences and increase consumer knowledge.		
Level III	Fashion Marketing OSSEID: 12153G0.5034 Grades: 11-12 Prerequisite: Entrepreneurship Credit: .5	Fashion Marketing is designed to provide students with knowledge of the various business functions in the fashion industry. Students in Fashion Marketing will gain a working knowledge of promotion, textiles, merchandising, mathematics, selling, visual merchandising, and career opportunities.		
Level III	Social Media and Marketing OSSEID: 12169G0.5034 Grades: 11-12 Prerequisite: Entrepreneurship Credit: .5	Social Media Marketing is designed to look at the rise of social media and how marketers are integrating social media tools in their overall marketing strategy. The course will investigate how the marketing community measures success in the new world of social media. Students will manage a successful social media presence for an organization, understand techniques for gaining customer and consumer buy-in to achieve marketing goals, and properly select social media platforms to engage		



		consumers and monitor and measure the results of these efforts.
Level III	Sports and Entertainment Marketing OSSEID: 12163G0.5034 Grades: 11-12 Prerequisite: Entrepreneurship Credit: .5	Sports and Entertainment Marketing will provide students with a thorough understanding of the marketing concepts and theories that apply to sports and entertainment. The areas this course will cover include basic marketing concepts, publicity, sponsorship, endorsements, licensing, branding, event marketing, promotions, and sports and entertainment marketing strategies.
Level IV	Practicum in Marketing OSSEID: 12954G1.0044 Grades: 12 Prerequisite: Advertising; Fashion Marketing, Social Media Marketing, Sports and Entertainment Marketing Credit: 1	Practicum in Marketing is a series of dynamic activities that focus on the customer to generate a profitable exchange. Students will gain knowledge and skills that help them to be proficient in one or more of the marketing functional areas associated with distribution, financing, marketing information management, pricing, product planning, promotion, purchasing, risk management, and selling skills. Students will integrate skills from academic subjects, information technology, interpersonal communication, and management training to make responsible decisions. The practicum course is a paid or unpaid experience for students participating in a coherent sequence of career and technical courses in marketing.

## Industry Certifications

Google Analytics Individual Qualification (GAIQ)

Work-Based Learning Examples and Resources				
Level I Course	Level II Course	Level III Course	Level IV Course	
Career Exploration	Career Awareness	Career Preparation	<b>Career Preparation</b>	
Industry Visits	All of Level I, plus:	All of Level I and II, plus:	Paid/Unpaid	
Guest Speakers	Postsecondary Visits Program-	Job Shadow	Internships	
Participate in a CTSO	Specific Site Tours	Paid/Unpaid Internships	Apprenticeships	
	Mock Interviews			

#### Several resources are available to help instructors meet the Level I and Level II WBL requirements, including:

**Career Coach DC** (<u>http://careercoachdc.emsicc.com</u>). Online site designed to help students find and connect to a career pathway by providing the most current local data on wages, employment, job postings, and associated education and training. The resource includes a Career Assessment for students.

**Nepris** (<u>https://dc.nepris.com/</u>). Connects educators and learners with a network of industry professionals virtually, bringing real-world relevance and career exposure to all students. Nepris also provides a skills-based volunteering platform for business and industry professionals to extend their educational outreach.



**Virtual Job Shadow** (<u>https://virtualjobshadow.com</u>). Provides interactive tools which empower students to discover, plan, and pursue their dreams. Rich video library presents a "day in the life of" view for thousands of occupations.

## Labor Market Information Definitions and Data

Career and Technical Education programs of study in the District of Columbia must meet at least one of the High Wage, High Skill, and In-Demand definitions below to be considered appropriate for our students and the regional labor market. These definitions were created in collaboration with Career and Technical Education leaders from District of Columbia LEAs, the University of the District of Columbia Community College, and national guidance from Research Triangle International (RTI) and Education Northwest. Additionally, previous work was consulted by researchers at MIT's Labor Wage Index Project and the DC CTE Task Force's 2012 Strategic Plan for the District of Columbia.

Indicator	Definition	Data for the Marketing Program of Study (source: EMSI, August 2022)
High Wage	Those occupations that have a 25 <sup>th</sup> percentile wage equal to or greater than the most recent MIT Living Wage Index for one adult in the District of Columbia, and/or leads to a position that pays at least the median hourly or annual wage for the Washington, DC, metropolitan statistical area. A 25 <sup>th</sup> percentile hourly wage of \$23.13 or greater is required to meet this definition. Those occupations located within the Washington, DC, metropolitan statistical area	Standard Occupational Code (SOC): 11-2021.00 Marketing Managers Hourly Wages 25 <sup>th</sup> Percentile: \$60.35 50 <sup>th</sup> Percentile: \$79.17 75 <sup>th</sup> Percentile: \$104.08 Typical Entry-Level Education: Bachelor's Degree
High Skill	with the following education or training requirements: completion of an apprenticeship program; completion of an industry-recognized certification or credential; associate's degree, or higher.	Bachelor's Degree
In-Demand	<ul> <li>Those occupations in the Washington, DC, metropolitan statistical area having more than the median number of total (<i>growth plus replacement</i>) annual openings over a five-year period.</li> <li>Note: An occupation is required to have an annual growth plus replacement rate of 105 openings, or greater, between 2021-2026 to meet this definition.</li> </ul>	Annual Openings: 1,242



## Model Six-Year Plan: Marketing

**College:** University of the District of Columbia Community College **Program/CIP: Plan:** 

#### Entity: Office of the State Superintendent of Education Career Cluster: Marketing Program of Study: Marketing

High School			College					
Subject	9 <sup>th</sup> Grade	10 <sup>th</sup> Grade	11 <sup>th</sup> Grade	12 <sup>th</sup> Grade	Semester I	Semester II	Semester III	Semester IV
English (4)	English I	English II	English III	English IV				
Math (4)	Algebra I	Geometry	Algebra II	Math				
Science (4)	Biology	Lab Science	Anatomy and Physiology	Science				
Social Studies (4)	World History and Geography I: Middle Ages	World History and Geography II: Modern World	U.S. History	U.S. Government (.5) and D.C. History (.5)				
Health (.5) and Physical Ed (1)	Health (.5) Physical Ed (.5)	Physical Ed (.5)						
World Languages (2)			World Language I	World Language II				
Art (.5)		Art (.5)						
Music (.5)		Music (.5)						
Elective/ Major Courses	Principles of Business, Marketing, and Marketing	Private and Public Marketing	Advertising Fashion Marketing Social Media Marketing Sports and	Practicum in Marketing: Marketing				
Total possible college o	credits completed	in high school: XX	Sports and Entertainment Marketing		Credit hours r <u>equi</u> i	red to comple <u>te th</u>	ne AAS program: XX	



## **Course Standards**

## Principles of Business, Marketing, and Marketing

- 1. **General requirements.** This course is recommended for students in Grades 9-12. Students shall be awarded one credit for successful completion of this course.
- 2. Introduction.
  - A. Career and technical education instruction provides content aligned with challenging academic standards and relevant technical knowledge and skills for students to further their education and succeed in current or emerging professions.
  - B. The Business Management and Administration Career Cluster focuses on careers in planning, organizing, directing, and evaluating business functions essential to efficient and productive business operations.
  - C. In Principles of Business, Marketing, and Marketing, students gain knowledge and skills in economies and private enterprise systems, the impact of global business, the marketing of goods and services, advertising, and product pricing. Students analyze the sales process and financial management principles. This course allows students to reinforce, apply, and transfer academic knowledge and skills to a variety of interesting and relevant activities, problems, and settings in business, marketing, and Marketing.
  - D. Students will participate in at least two Career Exploration Work-Based Learning experiences in this course, which might include guest speakers and workplace tours relevant to the program of study.
  - E. Students are encouraged to participate in extended learning experiences such as career and technical student organizations and other leadership or extracurricular organizations.

#### 3. Knowledge and skills.

- A. The student demonstrates professional standards/employability skills required by business and industry. The student is expected to:
  - 1. communicate effectively with others using oral and written skills;
  - 2. demonstrate collaboration skills through teamwork;
  - 3. demonstrate professionalism by conducting oneself in a manner appropriate for the profession and workplace;
  - 4. demonstrate a positive, productive work ethic by performing assigned tasks as directed;
  - 5. comply with all applicable rules, laws, and regulations; and
  - 6. demonstrate time-management skills by prioritizing tasks, following schedules, and tending to goal-relevant activities in a way that uses time wisely and optimizes efficiency and results.
- B. The student describes the characteristics of a business. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain the principles of supply and demand;
  - 2. differentiate between goods and services;
  - 3. identify the types of business;
  - 4. compare the different forms of ownership;
  - 5. examine the organizational structure and functions of business;



- 6. interpret the nature of balance sheets and income statements; and
- 7. identify business cycles.
- C. The student defines ethics in business. The student is expected to:
  - 1. distinguish between ethical and unethical business practices; and
  - 2. contrast ethical, moral, and legal choices that relate to the decision-making process in business situations.
- D. The student differentiates between the types of economic systems with an emphasis on the private enterprise system and the U.S. economy. The student is expected to:
  - 1. compare and contrast the types of economic systems, including traditional, centrally planned, market, and mixed economies;
  - 2. summarize the characteristics of the private enterprise system; and
  - 3. identify factors affecting business profits, revenues, and expenses.
- E. The student relates to the impact of international business on the U.S. economy. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain the role of business in a global society;
  - 2. compare domestic and world trade; and
  - 3. explain the impact of imports and exports on the U.S. economy.
- F. The student identifies the role and impact of government, the legal system, and organized labor in business. The student is expected to:
  - 1. differentiate among the roles of government in business;
  - 2. describe types of activities performed by governments in business;
  - 3. ascertain the role of the legal system in business; and
  - 4. explain the role of organized labor in society.

#### G. The student classifies types of businesses that market goods and services. The student is expected to:

- 1. explain the importance of different marketing strategies for goods versus services;
- 2. define business and industry terms such as producers, raw-goods producers, manufacturers, builders, trade industries, retailers, wholesalers, and service businesses;
- 3. identify types of retailers;
- 4. explain the role of retailers in a private enterprise system;
- 5. identify examples of wholesalers; and
- 6. describe the role of wholesalers in a private enterprise system.

#### H. The student analyzes cost and profit relationships in Marketing. The student is expected to:

- 1. explain the concept of productivity;
- 2. analyze the impact of specialization and division of labor on productivity; and
- 3. explain the concept of organized labor and business.

#### I. The student understands the fundamental principles of money. The student is expected to:

- 1. evaluate forms of financial exchange, including cash, credit, debit, and electronic funds transfer;
- 2. identify types of currency, including paper money, coins, banknotes, government bonds, and treasury notes;
- 3. list functions of money such as medium of exchange, unit of measure, and store of value;
- 4. summarize the purposes and importance of credit; and
- 5. explain legal responsibilities associated with financial exchanges.



#### J. The student demonstrates an understanding of personal financial management. The student is expected to:

- 1. explain the importance of providing accurate information;
- 2. calculate gross and net pay;
- 3. simulate opening and maintaining various types of bank accounts;
- 4. reconcile bank statements;
- 5. compare the advantages and disadvantages of different types of banking services;
- 6. examine investment growth by developing a personal investment plan; and
- 7. prepare an individual income tax return.
- K. The student explains the importance of marketing as well as the functions of marketing. The student is expected to:
  - 1. define marketing;
  - 2. understand how marketing is related to other functions of business;
  - 3. explain the marketing concept; and
  - 4. describe marketing functions and its related activities.

#### L. The student understands the scope of market identification. The student is expected to:

- 1. explain the concept of market and market identification;
- 2. identify market segments;
- 3. explain the difference between market segmentation and mass marketing;
- 4. define and explain the importance of target markets; and
- 5. identify a target market for a product or service using market segmentation.

#### M. The student understands the importance of an effective marketing mix. The student is expected to:

- 1. explain the concept of marketing strategies;
- 2. define each component of the marketing mix;
- 3. identify examples of an effective marketing mix;
- 4. create an effective marketing mix for a product or service; and
- 5. explain the role of participation as a key element of marketing.
- N. The student identifies career opportunities within the Business Management and Administration career cluster, the Marketing career cluster, and the Marketing career cluster and formulates a career plan. The student is expected to:
  - 1. analyze individual goals and interests;
  - 2. determine individual talents, abilities, and skills; and
  - 3. develop an individual career plan.

#### O. The student develops technology skills. The student is expected to:

- 1. use technology as a tool to research, organize, evaluate, and communicate information.
- 2. use digital technologies (computers, PDAs, media players, GPSs, etc.), communication/networking tools, and social networks appropriately to access, manage, integrate, evaluate, and create information to successfully function in a knowledge economy.
- 3. demonstrate utilizing current and new technologies specific to the program of study, course, and/or industry; and



4. apply a fundamental understanding of the ethical/legal issues surrounding the access and use of information technologies.



## Entrepreneurship

 General requirements. This course is recommended for students in Grades 10-12. Recommended prerequisite: Principles of Business, Marketing, and Finance or Business Management. Students shall be awarded one credit for successful completion of this course.

#### 2. Introduction.

- A. Career and technical education instruction provides content aligned with challenging academic standards and relevant technical knowledge and skills for students to further their education and succeed in current or emerging professions.
- B. The Marketing Career Cluster focuses on planning, managing, and performing marketing activities to reach organizational objectives.
- C. In Entrepreneurship, students will gain the knowledge and skills needed to become an entrepreneur. Students will learn the principles necessary to begin and operate a business. The primary focus of the course is to help students understand the process of analyzing a business opportunity, preparing a business plan, determining feasibility of an idea using research, and developing a plan to organize and promote the business and its products and services. In addition, students will understand the capital required, the return on investment desired, and the potential for profit.
- D. If taken as a Level II Course, students will participate in at least two Career Awareness Work-Based Learning experiences in this course, which might include informational interviews or job shadowing relevant to the program of study. If taken as a Level II Course, Students will participate in a Career Preparation Work-Based Learning experience in this course, which might include paid or unpaid internship experiences relevant to the program of study.
- E. Students are encouraged to participate in extended learning experiences such as career and technical student organizations and other leadership or extracurricular organizations.

#### 3. Knowledge and skills.

- A. The student demonstrates professional standards/employability skills as required by business and industry. The student is expected to:
  - 1. communicate effectively with others using speaking, listening, and writing skills;
  - 2. demonstrate collaboration skills through teamwork;
  - 3. demonstrate professionalism by conducting oneself in a manner appropriate for the profession and workplace;
  - 4. demonstrate a positive, productive work ethic by performing assigned tasks as directed;
  - 5. demonstrate integrity by choosing the ethical course of action and complying with all applicable rules, laws, and regulations;
  - 6. demonstrate time-management skills such as prioritizing tasks, following schedules, and tending to goalrelevant activities in ways that use time wisely and optimize efficiency and results; and
  - 7. demonstrate leadership skills by participating in career and technical student organizations.



- B. The student demonstrates an understanding of Design Thinking and applies the methodology as a strategy for innovation. The student is expected to:
  - 1. define the five-stage Design Thinking model proposed by the Hasso-Plattner Institute of Design at Stanford, including Empathize, Define, Ideate, Prototype, and Test.
  - 2. apply the Design Thinking model to a student-driven business opportunity, and present to an authentic audience.
- C. The student demonstrates an understanding of entrepreneurship and the entrepreneurial way of life. The student is expected to:
  - 1. clarify the terms entrepreneurship and entrepreneur;
  - 2. define small business; and
  - 3. analyze the advantages and disadvantages of entrepreneurship.
- D. The student visits local businesses and franchises to investigate business opportunities. The student is expected to:
  - 1. identify and analyze the four functions of a small business; and
  - 2. evaluate the issues involved with starting, taking over, or expanding an existing small business.

#### E. The student identifies the importance of a well-written business plan. The student is expected to:

- 1. identify the need for and the characteristics of a well-orchestrated business plan;
- 2. research business plan outlines, resources, and templates; and
- 3. create and present a well-orchestrated business plan and critically explain the contents.

#### F. The student explains the goal of a business and its unique proposition. The student is expected to:

- 1. describe the nature of a business and list the marketplace needs that it satisfies;
- 2. explain how a business's products and services meet the needs of the market;
- 3. list the specific consumers, organizations, or businesses that a company targets or will target;
- 4. explain the competitive advantages that make a business successful; and
- 5. create a well-orchestrated company description.
- G. The student explains and demonstrates how to meet the needs of a growing organization. The student is expected to:
  - 1. describe the role of operations and organization in a growing business; and
  - 2. create an organizational chart that defines the structure of a company.
- H. The student explains investment and financial resources to achieve business goals and objectives. The student is expected to:
  - 1. determine the financial plan, including financial requirements and sources of financing;
  - 2. explain the idea of a growth strategy, including horizontal and vertical growth strategies; and
  - 3. explain the idea of an exit strategy, including selling a business, going public, and liquidating a business.
- I. The student demonstrates and explains financial and accounting terms and forms. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain and define basic accounting functions, terms, assets, and types of assets, including cash; accounts receivable; fixed, liquid, and illiquid assets; and inventory goods on hand;
  - 2. identify liabilities and types of liabilities such as accounts payable, long-term debt, and short-term debt;
  - 3. calculate owner's equity or net worth;



- 4. evaluate a balance sheet understanding the balance sheet equation (A = L + OE);
- 5. analyze profit and loss statements;
- 6. evaluate revenues and types of revenues;
- 7. determine expenses and types of expenses;
- 8. analyze alternative accounting and internal accounting controls;
- 9. discuss the importance of budgeting and cash flow;
- 10. use common accounting forms to demonstrate an understanding of their functions and results;
- 11. analyze the impact of specialization and division of labor on productivity;
- 12. explain the impact of the law of diminishing returns; and
- 13. create projected financial statements.
- J. The student knows the effects of credit on price and profit. The student is expected to:
  - 1. identify types of consumer credit;
  - 2. recommend types of consumer credit a business might offer;
  - 3. explain the risks and benefits to entrepreneurs when accepting and extending credit; and
  - 4. describe how credit affects profit and the negotiated price.
- K. The student understands the importance of product management and how it meets the needs of the customer. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain product management;
  - 2. describe supply chain management; and
  - 3. create product-mix strategies, including branding elements and extended product features, to meet customer needs.
- L. The student knows that pricing has policies, objectives, and strategies. The student is expected to:
  - 1. develop and analyze pricing objectives;
  - 2. compare and contrast pricing policies for an entrepreneurial venture; and
  - 3. recommend appropriate pricing strategies.
- M. The student knows the importance of managing the pricing structure. The student is expected to:
  - 1. communicate the differences among pricing structures for goods, services, and ideas;
  - 2. develop a pricing structure for an entrepreneurial venture; and
  - 3. demonstrate how to calculate prices, markups, and discounts.
- N. The student knows elements and processes of product planning. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain the nature and scope of product planning;
  - 2. define the term product mix; and
  - 3. identify stages of the product life cycle for business products.
- O. The student knows the process for development, implementation, and evaluation of a marketing plan. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain how market penetration strategies contribute to successful marketing;
  - 2. apply evaluation strategies to determine the effectiveness of market penetration strategies;
  - 3. illustrate the concept of promotional mix;
  - 4. use appropriate technology to create promotional materials;
  - 5. apply evaluation strategies to determine promotional campaign effectiveness;



- 6. describe the development of a sales force; and
- 7. apply evaluation strategies to determine the effectiveness of sales activities.
- P. The student knows that purchasing usually occurs in a continuous cycle. The student is expected to:
  - 1. demonstrate the process of selecting suppliers and sources; and
  - 2. analyze and discuss selection of goods and services based on operational needs.
- Q. The student knows that entrepreneurial risk is the possibility of loss or failure. The student is expected to:
  - 1. categorize business risks such as human, natural, and economic;
  - 2. classify business risks as pure or speculative, controllable or uncontrollable, and insurable or uninsurable;
  - 3. explain security precautions and health, safety, and worker welfare regulations; and
  - 4. analyze examples of business risks to recommend and defend risk-management strategies.
- R. The student understands the importance of a business's social responsibility to society as it relates to shareholders, employees, customers, the community, and the environment. The student is expected to discuss the responsibility of business.
- S. The student understands business ethics and legal responsibilities. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain ethical actions in business operations, including ethical considerations in providing information, confidential information, and information appropriate to obtain from a client or another employee; and
  - 2. manage internal and external business relationships to foster positive interactions by explaining the nature of human resources and workplace regulations, discussing employment relationships, and analyzing the impact of ethical decisions.
- T. The student acquires foundational knowledge of business laws and regulations to understand their nature and scope. The student is expected to:
  - 1. identify the legal issues affecting businesses; and
  - 2. investigate the impact of the legal issues.
- U. The student explains the civil foundations of the legal environment of business to demonstrate knowledge of contracts. The student is expected to:
  - 1. identify the basic torts relating to business enterprises; and
  - 2. describe the nature of legally binding contracts.
- V. The student explores the regulatory environment of business to understand the diversity of regulations. The student is expected to:
  - 1. describe the nature of legal procedure;
  - 2. discuss the nature of debtor-creditor relationships;
  - 3. explain the nature of agency relationships;
  - 4. discuss the nature of environmental law;
  - 5. identify the role of administrative law; and
  - 6. identify regulatory requirements affecting a business.

#### W. The student knows the scope and nature of distribution. The student is expected to:

1. define effective channels of distribution strategies, including activities associated with transportation, storage, product handling, and inventory control;



- 2. explain how distribution can add value to goods, services, and intellectual property; and
- 3. determine costs associated with distribution.
- X. The student knows that marketing research is a specific inquiry to solve a problem. The student is expected to:
  - 1. identify benefits and limitations of marketing research;
  - 2. identify components of the marketing research process;
  - 3. explain how to use the marketing research process in order to identify industry trends and potential markets, analyze demand, forecast sales, and make other decisions; and
  - 4. identify sources of primary and secondary data.
- Y. The student knows the process of collecting marketing information to facilitate decision making. The student is expected to:
  - 1. conduct a market analysis;
  - 2. use appropriate technology to obtain information about the industry, customer, and competition; and
  - 3. conduct an analysis of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats.

#### Z. The student develops technology skills. The student is expected to:

- 1. use technology as a tool to research, organize, evaluate, and communicate information.
- 2. use digital technologies (computers, PDAs, media players, GPSs, etc.), communication/networking tools, and social networks appropriately to access, manage, integrate, evaluate, and create information to successfully function in a knowledge economy.
- 3. demonstrate utilizing current and new technologies specific to the program of study, course, and/or industry; and
- 4. apply a fundamental understanding of the ethical/legal issues surrounding the access and use of information technologies.



## Advertising

 General requirements. This course is recommended for students in Grades 9-12. Recommended prerequisite: Principles of Business, Marketing, and Finance. Students shall be awarded one-half credit for successful completion of this course.

#### 2. Introduction.

- A. Career and technical education instruction provides content aligned with challenging academic standards and relevant technical knowledge and skills for students to further their education and succeed in current or emerging professions.
- B. The Marketing Career Cluster focuses on planning, managing, and performing marketing activities to reach organizational objectives.
- C. Advertising is designed as a comprehensive introduction to the principles and practices of advertising. Students will gain knowledge of techniques used in current advertising, including print, broadcast, and digital media. The course explores the social, cultural, ethical, and legal issues of advertising, historical influences, strategies, media decision processes as well as integrated marketing communications, and careers in advertising and sales promotion. The course provides an overview of how communication tools can be used to reach target audiences and increase consumer knowledge.
- D. Students will participate in a Career Preparation Work-Based Learning experience in this course, which might include paid or unpaid internship experiences relevant to the program of study.
- E. Students are encouraged to participate in extended learning experiences such as career and technical student organizations and other leadership or extracurricular organizations.

#### 3. Knowledge and skills.

- A. The student demonstrates professional standards/employability skills as required by business and industry. The student is expected to:
  - 1. communicate effectively with others using speaking, listening, and writing skills;
  - 2. demonstrate collaboration skills through teamwork;
  - 3. demonstrate professionalism by conducting oneself in a manner appropriate for the profession and workplace;
  - 4. demonstrate a positive, productive work ethic by performing assigned tasks as directed;
  - 5. show integrity by choosing the ethical course of action and complying with all applicable rules, laws, and regulations;
  - 6. demonstrate time-management skills by prioritizing tasks, following schedules, and tending to goal-relevant activities in a way that uses time wisely and optimizes efficiency and results; and
  - 7. demonstrate leadership skills, teamwork, and communication skills by participating in career and technical education courses.
- B. The student knows the importance of marketing as well as the functions of marketing. The student is expected to:
  - 1. recognize marketing functions and how they relate to advertising;
  - 2. explain how each component of the marketing mix contributes to successful advertising;
  - 3. identify the importance of target markets; and
  - 4. research trends affecting advertising marketing.
- C. The student knows the impact and value of diversity. The student is expected to:



- 1. examine elements of culture and discuss the need for understanding cultural diversity; and
- 2. identify how diversity affects advertising strategy.

#### D. The student knows the nature and scope of advertising marketing. The student is expected to:

- 1. demonstrate knowledge of the history of advertising as an industry and how it relates to today's marketplace;
- 2. discuss major environmental influences that impact advertising;
- 3. research the advantages and disadvantages of the types of advertising; and
- 4. illustrate how international marketing affects the advertising industry.

#### E. The student knows that advertising requires knowledge of demographics. The student is expected to:

- 1. explain how the use of demographics has influenced the industry;
- 2. differentiate between buying habits and buying preferences; and
- 3. explain the impact of multiculturalism and multigenerationalism on advertising marketing activities.

#### F. The student knows that a career in advertising requires knowledge of the industry. The student is expected to:

- 1. research careers in the advertising industry;
- 2. identify businesses related to advertising; and
- 3. identify the role of professional organizations, trade associations, and labor unions in the advertising industry.

#### G. The student understands the importance of selling in the advertising industry. The student is expected to:

- 1. explain how selling contributes to the success of an advertising agency; and
- 2. employ the steps of selling, including prospecting, pre-approach, approach, presentation, overcoming objections, close, and follow-up.
- H. The student evaluates and uses information resources to research careers in advertising and sales. The student is expected to:
  - 1. use multimedia resources such as the Internet to research careers in advertising and sales; and
  - 2. identify businesses related to advertising and sales.
- 1. The student develops and delivers presentations using appropriate media to engage and inform audiences. The student is expected to:
  - 1. prepare oral presentations to provide information for specific purposes and audiences;
  - 2. identify and prepare support materials that will enhance an oral presentation; and
  - 3. deliver an oral presentation that sustains listener attention and interest.
- J. The student knows the marketing-information system. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain characteristics and purposes of a marketing-information system;
  - 2. identify benefits and limitations of marketing research; and
  - 3. analyze data used to make accurate forecasts.
- K. The student knows pricing policies, objectives, and strategies. The student is expected to:
  - 1. compare and contrast pricing policies; and
  - 2. analyze the price of an advertising marketing product.



- L. The student knows the elements and processes of product planning. The student is expected to:
  - 1. describe stages of new-product planning;
  - 2. analyze product mix; and
  - 3. identify stages of the product life cycle for new or existing advertising marketing plans.
- M. The student knows that successful marketers must develop, implement, and evaluate a promotional plan. The student is expected to:
  - 1. identify components of the promotional mix such as advertising, visual merchandising, and personal selling;
  - 2. demonstrate visual merchandising techniques for advertising marketing goods, services, or ideas; and
  - 3. analyze a promotional plan for effectiveness.
- N. The student knows how technology affects advertising. The student is expected to:
  - 1. examine how social media contributes to advertising; and
  - 2. research the use of technology in advertising.
- O. The student understands how media planning should achieve marketing objectives. The student is expected to:
  - 1. compare and contrast the different forms of media; and
  - 2. distinguish between the four components of marketing, including paid, earned, shared, and owned (PESO).

#### P. The student develops technology skills. The student is expected to:

- 1. use technology as a tool to research, organize, evaluate, and communicate information.
- 2. use digital technologies (computers, PDAs, media players, GPSs, etc.), communication/networking tools, and social networks appropriately to access, manage, integrate, evaluate, and create information to successfully function in a knowledge economy.
- 3. demonstrate utilizing current and new technologies specific to the program of study, course, and/or industry; and
- 4. apply a fundamental understanding of the ethical/legal issues surrounding the access and use of information technologies.



## **Fashion Marketing**

1. **General requirements.** This course is recommended for students in Grades 11-12. Prerequisite: Entrepreneurship. Students shall be awarded one-half credit for successful completion of this course.

#### 2. Introduction.

- A. Career and technical education instruction provides content aligned with challenging academic standards and relevant technical knowledge and skills for students to further their education and succeed in current or emerging professions.
- B. The Marketing Career Cluster focuses on planning, managing, and performing marketing activities to reach organizational objectives.
- C. Fashion Marketing is designed to provide students with knowledge of the various business functions in the fashion industry. Students in Fashion Marketing will gain a working knowledge of promotion, textiles, merchandising, mathematics, selling, visual merchandising, and career opportunities.
- D. Students will participate in a Career Preparation Work-Based Learning experience in this course, which might include paid or unpaid internship experiences relevant to the program of study.
- E. Students are encouraged to participate in extended learning experiences such as career and technical student organizations and other leadership or extracurricular organizations.

#### 3. Knowledge and skills.

- A. The student demonstrates professional standards/employability skills as required by business and industry. The student is expected to:
  - 1. communicate effectively with others using speaking, listening, and writing skills;
  - 2. demonstrate collaboration skills through teamwork;
  - 3. demonstrate professionalism by conducting oneself in a manner appropriate for the profession and workplace;
  - 4. demonstrate a positive, productive work ethic by performing assigned tasks as directed;
  - 5. demonstrate integrity by choosing the ethical course of action and complying with all applicable rules, laws, and regulations;
  - 6. demonstrate time-management skills by prioritizing tasks, following schedules, and tending to goal-relevant activities in ways that use time wisely and optimize efficiency and results; and
  - 7. demonstrate leadership skills by participating in activities such as career and technical education student organizations.

#### B. The student knows the importance and functions of marketing. The student is expected to:

- 1. describe each marketing function and how it relates to the fashion industry;
- 2. describe advantages and disadvantages of market segmentation and mass marketing; and
- 3. research trends affecting fashion marketing.

#### C. The student knows the impact and value of diversity. The student is expected to:

- 1. explain elements of culture and the need for understanding cultural diversity; and
- 2. identify how diversity affects fashion.



- D. The student demonstrates the use of oral and written communication skills in creating, expressing, and interpreting information and ideas, including technical terminology and information. The student is expected to:
  - 1. create presentations using appropriate media to inform audiences; and
  - 2. exhibit public relations skills to increase customer satisfaction.
- E. The student knows that distribution channel members facilitate the movement of products. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain channels of distribution for fashion products; and
  - 2. describe activities of each channel member in the fashion industry.
- F. The student knows the marketing-information system. The student is expected to:
  - 1. define the purpose of marketing-information systems;
  - 2. identify limitations of marketing research;
  - 3. explain how inventory can be managed by using tools such as point-of-sale systems, just-in-time strategies, and radio frequency identification (RFID) technology; and
  - 4. analyze data used to make accurate retail forecasts.
- G. The student knows concepts and strategies used in determining and adjusting prices to maximize return and meet customers' perceptions of value. The student is expected to:
  - 1. employ pricing strategies to determine prices;
  - 2. develop a sample credit policy that could be a useful fashion marketing strategy; and
  - 3. analyze the price of a fashion product.
- H. The student knows merchandising concepts and processes used in obtaining, developing, maintaining, and improving a product or service to respond to marketing opportunities. The student is expected to:
  - 1. use assortment-mix strategies to create maximum mix of products at minimum cost;
  - 2. perform buying activities to obtain products for resale;
  - 3. analyze vendor performance to choose vendors and merchandise; and
  - 4. position products and services to acquire a desired business image.
- 1. The student knows that a successful marketer must communicate information on retail products, services, images, and ideas to achieve a desired outcome. The student is expected to:
  - 1. demonstrate methods of advertising to communicate promotional messages to targeted audiences;
  - 2. use special events to increase sales;
  - 3. display visual merchandising techniques to increase interest in product offerings;
  - 4. implement display techniques to attract customers and increase sales potential; and
  - 5. manage promotional activities to maximize return on promotional efforts.
- J. The student knows that purchasing occurs as steps in a continuous cycle. The student is expected to:
  - 1. distinguish between buying for resale and buying for organizational use; and
  - 2. demonstrate knowledge of the fashion buying process such as preparing a buying plan, completing purchase orders, and processing invoices.



- K. The student demonstrates an understanding of concepts and actions to determine client needs and wants. The student is expected to:
  - 1. acquire product knowledge to communicate product benefits and to ensure appropriateness of product for the customer; and
  - 2. employ sales processes and techniques to enhance customer relationships and to increase the likelihood of making sales.
- L. The student knows the nature and scope of fashion. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain the importance of fashion;
  - 2. demonstrate knowledge of fashion history and how it relates to today's fashions;
  - 3. distinguish among fashion terms such as fashion, style, and design;
  - 4. list major environmental influences on fashion demand;
  - 5. research fashion information;
  - 6. explain legislation that impacts the fashion industry; and
  - 7. describe how international marketing has affected the fashion industry.
- M. The student knows that a career in fashion marketing requires knowledge of the industry. The student is expected to:
  - 1. research careers in the fashion industry;
  - 2. list and describe businesses related to the fashion industry; and
  - 3. delineate components of softlines such as sportswear, footwear, and men's and children's fashions.
- N. The student demonstrates mathematics knowledge and skills required to pursue the full-range of postsecondary education and career opportunities. The student is expected to:
  - 1. apply data and measurements to solve a problem; and
  - 2. analyze mathematical problem statements for missing or irrelevant data.

#### Q. The student develops technology skills. The student is expected to:

- 1. use technology as a tool to research, organize, evaluate, and communicate information.
- 2. use digital technologies (computers, PDAs, media players, GPSs, etc.), communication/networking tools, and social networks appropriately to access, manage, integrate, evaluate, and create information to successfully function in a knowledge economy.
- 3. demonstrate utilizing current and new technologies specific to the program of study, course, and/or industry; and
- 4. apply a fundamental understanding of the ethical/legal issues surrounding the access and use of information technologies.



## **Social Media Marketing**

1. **General requirements.** This course is recommended for students in Grades 11-12. Prerequisite: Entrepreneurship. Students shall be awarded one-half credit for successful completion of this course.

#### 2. Introduction.

- A. Career and technical education instruction provides content aligned with challenging academic standards and relevant technical knowledge and skills for students to further their education and succeed in current or emerging professions.
- B. The Marketing Career Cluster focuses on planning, managing, and performing marketing activities to reach organizational objectives.
- C. Social Media Marketing is designed to look at the rise of social media and how marketers are integrating social media tools in their overall marketing strategy. The course will investigate how the marketing community measures success in the new world of social media. Students will manage a successful social media presence for an organization, understand techniques for gaining customer and consumer buy-in to achieve marketing goals, and properly select social media platforms to engage consumers and monitor and measure the results of these efforts.
- D. Students will participate in a Career Preparation Work-Based Learning experience in this course, which might include paid or unpaid internship experiences relevant to the program of study.
- E. Students are encouraged to participate in extended learning experiences such as career and technical student organizations and other leadership or extracurricular organizations.

#### 3. Knowledge and skills.

- A. The student demonstrates professional standards/employability skills as required by business and industry. The student is expected to:
  - 1. communicate effectively with others using speaking, listening, and writing skills;
  - 2. demonstrate collaboration skills through teamwork;
  - 3. demonstrate professionalism by conducting oneself in a manner appropriate for the profession and workplace;
  - 4. demonstrate a positive, productive work ethic by performing assigned tasks as directed;
  - 5. show integrity by choosing the ethical course of action and complying with all applicable rules, laws, and regulations;
  - 6. demonstrate time-management skills such as prioritizing tasks, following schedules, and tending to goalrelevant activities in ways that use time wisely and optimize efficiency and results; and
  - 7. demonstrate leadership skills by participating in career and technical student organizations.
- B. The student knows the nature and scope of social media marketing. The student is expected to:
  - 1. differentiate between in-bound marketing and out-bound marketing;
  - 2. explain the nature of in-bound marketing;
  - 3. identify the various social media platforms and purposes;
  - 4. define social media marketing;
  - 5. identify and describe significant trends in the development of social media;



- 6. understand how the development of social media has shaped online media and communications; and
- 7. describe the social media marketing ecosystem and its impact on traditional marketing strategy.
- C. The student knows the legalities, ethical implications, and risks associated with social media marketing. The student is expected to:
  - 1. apply legal boundaries and concepts affecting social media;
  - 2. analyze ethical guidelines and codes of ethics to explain how or why they are important to social media organizations;
  - 3. identify risk factors associated with social media marketing;
  - 4. explain the concept of real-time marketing; and
  - 5. discuss the ramifications of real-time marketing.
- D. The student knows how to critically evaluate social media and digital marketing tools. The student is expected to:
  - 1. evaluate and understand how social media has influenced the function of marketing;
  - 2. evaluate and understand how social media has evolved and influenced the way people communicate;
  - 3. analyze and evaluate the influence of social media on individuals and how individuals influence social media; and
  - 4. identify potential risks, advantages, and limitations of digital marketing tools.
- E. The student knows that strategic planning is essential to the success of social media marketing. The student is expected to:
  - 1. define the social media marketing process;
  - 2. understand participation as a key element of the marketing mix;
  - 3. understand how to integrate social media marketing into the Integrated Marketing Plan to promote brand/company awareness; and
  - 4. develop a social media marketing plan.

#### F. The student demonstrates how to use social media as a marketing tool. The student is expected to:

- 1. analyze, evaluate, and communicate information effectively through the use of social networking platforms such as Facebook, LinkedIn, and Twitter as marketing tools;
- 2. analyze, evaluate, and communicate information effectively through the use of social publishing platforms such as Instagram, Pinterest, and Tumblr as marketing tools;
- 3. analyze, evaluate, and communicate information effectively through the use of social entertainment platforms such as YouTube, Flickr, and Vine as marketing tools;
- 4. analyze, evaluate, and communicate information effectively through the use of social commerce platforms such as Groupon, Yelp!, and 4Square as marketing tools; and
- 5. analyze, evaluate, and communicate information effectively through the use of emerging social media.

#### G. The student knows how to use mobile marketing as a marketing tool. The student is expected to:

- 1. understand the nature and scope of mobile marketing;
- 2. identify advantages and disadvantages of mobile marketing; and
- 3. demonstrate the ability to use mobile marketing tools such as Short Message Service (SMS)/Multimedia Messaging Service (MMS), Quick Response (QR) codes, mobile phone applications, and mobile optimized websites.



- H. The student measures the success of a social media marketing plan. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain the role of social media in marketing research;
  - 2. understand the nature and scope of social media analytics; and
  - 3. measure the success of social media marketing strategies using analytics data.
- 1. The student knows that a career in social media marketing requires knowledge of the industry. The student is expected to:
  - 1. research and describe careers in the field of social media marketing; and
  - 2. research employment trends in the field of social media marketing.

#### J. The student develops technology skills. The student is expected to:

- 1. use technology as a tool to research, organize, evaluate, and communicate information.
- 2. use digital technologies (computers, PDAs, media players, GPSs, etc.), communication/networking tools, and social networks appropriately to access, manage, integrate, evaluate, and create information to successfully function in a knowledge economy.
- 3. demonstrate utilizing current and new technologies specific to the program of study, course, and/or industry; and
- 4. apply a fundamental understanding of the ethical/legal issues surrounding the access and use of information technologies.



## **Sports and Entertainment Marketing**

1. **General requirements.** This course is recommended for students in Grades 11-12. Prerequisite: Entrepreneurship. Students shall be awarded one-half credit for successful completion of this course.

#### 2. Introduction.

- A. Career and technical education instruction provides content aligned with challenging academic standards and relevant technical knowledge and skills for students to further their education and succeed in current or emerging professions.
- B. The Marketing Career Cluster focuses on planning, managing, and performing marketing activities to reach organizational objectives.
- C. Sports and Entertainment Marketing will provide students with a thorough understanding of the marketing concepts and theories that apply to sports and entertainment. The areas this course will cover include basic marketing concepts, publicity, sponsorship, endorsements, licensing, branding, event marketing, promotions, and sports and entertainment marketing strategies.
- D. Students will participate in a Career Preparation Work-Based Learning experience in this course, which might include paid or unpaid internship experiences relevant to the program of study.
- E. Students are encouraged to participate in extended learning experiences such as career and technical student organizations and other leadership or extracurricular organizations.

#### 3. Knowledge and skills.

- A. The student demonstrates professional standards/employability skills as required by business and industry. The student is expected to:
  - 1. communicate effectively with others using speaking, listening, and writing skills;
  - 2. demonstrate collaboration skills through teamwork;
  - 3. demonstrate professionalism by conducting oneself in a manner appropriate for the profession and workplace;
  - 4. demonstrate a positive, productive work ethic by performing assigned tasks as directed;
  - 5. show integrity by choosing the ethical course of action and complying with all applicable rules, laws, and regulations;
  - 6. demonstrate time-management skills such as prioritizing tasks, following schedules, and tending to goalrelevant activities in ways that use time wisely and optimize efficiency and results; and
  - 7. demonstrate leadership skills by participating in activities such as career and technical education student organizations.
- B. The student knows business concepts and explains how business satisfies economic needs. The student is expected to:
  - 1. categorize business activities such as production, marketing, management, or finance;
  - 2. analyze the interdependence each business activity has with marketing;
  - 3. demonstrate an understanding of the forms of business; and
  - 4. demonstrate an understanding of the concept of economic impact.



- C. The student knows the importance of marketing as well as the functions of marketing. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain the marketing concept as it relates to sports and entertainment;
  - 2. describe each marketing function and how it relates to sports and entertainment;
  - 3. explain how each component of the marketing mix contributes to successful marketing;
  - 4. express the importance of target markets;
  - 5. describe advantages and disadvantages of market segmentation and mass marketing;
  - 6. explain the importance of market research and analysis;
  - 7. illustrate the concept of positioning; and
  - 8. describe how international marketing has affected the sports and entertainment industry.
- D. The student knows that distribution channel members facilitate the movement of products. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain channels of distribution for sports and entertainment marketing products; and
  - 2. describe activities of each channel member.

#### E. The student knows how sports and entertainment businesses achieve profitability. The student is expected to:

- 1. evaluate sources of financial information, including budgets, balance sheets, and income statements;
- 2. explain the concept and importance of revenue streams; and
- 3. explain the relationship of profit and loss to sports and entertainment products.

#### F. The student knows the marketing-information system. The student is expected to:

- 1. use a marketing-information system to make informed business decisions; and
- 2. analyze data used to make accurate forecasts and informed business decisions.

#### G. The student knows pricing strategies. The student is expected to:

- 1. compare and contrast pricing strategies; and
- 2. analyze the price of sports and entertainment marketing products.
- H. The student knows the elements and processes of product planning. The student is expected to:
  - 1. describe stages of new-product planning;
  - 2. illustrate the product mix; and
  - 3. identify stages of the product life cycle for new or existing sports or entertainment marketing products.

# 1. The student knows that successful marketers must develop, implement, and evaluate a promotional plan. The student is expected to:

- 1. identify, create, and demonstrate elements of the promotional mix; and
- 2. analyze a promotional plan for effectiveness.
- J. The student knows that various types of risks impact business activities. The student is expected to:
  - 1. identify business risks that are commonly associated with sports and entertainment business; and
  - 2. explain methods a sports and entertainment business uses to control risks.
- K. The student identifies the role of selling and emphasizes its importance in a sports and entertainment business. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain how selling contributes to economic activity;



- 2. describe the process of selecting and merchandising sports and entertainment products;
- 3. demonstrate steps in the selling process using sports and entertainment products;
- 4. explain the importance of ticket sales; and
- 5. develop a ticket sales strategy for a sports and entertainment product.

# L. The student identifies the nature and scope of sports and entertainment marketing. The student is expected to:

- 1. research and explain the history of sports and entertainment as an industry and how it impacts today's marketplace;
- 2. identify sports and entertainment marketing terms;
- 3. list major environmental influences on sports and entertainment demand;
- 4. define sports marketing and entertainment marketing;
- 5. explain topics, including legislation and ethics, that impact sports and entertainment marketing;
- 6. research trends and emerging technologies affecting the sports and entertainment marketing industry; and
- 7. explain the concept of competition for discretionary income.
- M. The student knows that a career in sports and entertainment marketing requires knowledge of demographics. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explore how the use of demographics has influenced the industry; and
  - 2. differentiate between buying habits and buying preferences.
- N. The student knows that a career in sports and entertainment marketing requires knowledge of the industry. The student is expected to:
  - 1. research careers in the sports and entertainment marketing industry;
  - 2. list and describe businesses related to sports and entertainment; and
  - 3. distinguish between the different roles in sports and entertainment marketing.
- O. The student identifies reasons a sports and entertainment business would use marketing. The student will be expected to:
  - 1. describe and simulate activities to market a sports and entertainment product;
  - 2. understand why sports and entertainment businesses use marketing;
  - 3. understand the importance of and key components of a marketing plan;
  - 4. explain and give examples of marketing using sports and entertainment; and
  - 5. explain and give examples of marketing of sports and entertainment.

# P. The student understands the impact event marketing has on the sports and entertainment industry The student is expected to:

- 1. define event marketing;
- 2. explain and provide examples of how event marketing attracts all three components of the event triangle (event, sponsor, and spectator); and
- 3. develop an effective event marketing strategy for a sports and entertainment product.

#### Q. The student has an understanding of sponsorship proposals and contracts. The student is expected to:

- 1. identify components and content for a sponsorship proposal;
- 2. define and explain sponsorship issues;
- 3. categorize costs associated with a sponsorship;



- 4. identify types of sponsorship sales and relationship development;
- 5. examine benefits of sponsorship opportunities; and
- 6. explain laws that may affect a sponsorship agreement.

#### R. The student has an understanding of endorsement contracts. The student is expected to:

- 1. identify components of endorsement contracts;
- 2. discuss issues related to celebrity behavior on endorsements; and
- 3. research the rationale for a business to engage in endorsement contracts.

#### S. The student understands the importance of branding. The student is expected to:

- 1. define branding;
- 2. differentiate between types of brands;
- 3. identify examples of brand equity and brand extension in sports and entertainment;
- 4. explain the value in building a strong brand; and
- 5. determine the characteristics of a successful brand.

#### T. The student understands the importance of licensing. The student is expected to:

- 1. define licensing;
- 2. distinguish between licensor and licensee;
- 3. explain the advantages and disadvantages of licensing; and
- 4. identify examples of licensing in sports and entertainment.

# U. The student knows the effect the fan experience has on the success of a sports business. The student is expected to:

- 1. explain how promoting and implementing a positive fan experience impacts revenues;
- 2. describe situations that impact the fan experience;
- 3. describe the concept of the fan/spectator experience;
- 4. define the term game operations;
- 5. explain the role of game entertainment in the sports business;
- 6. define game attractiveness;
- 7. identify game involvement activities that enhance fan experience; and
- 8. create a game operations plan to increase game attractiveness.

# V. The student understands the importance of effectively communicating information with customers, media, and fans. The student is expected to:

- 1. explain why communications in sports and entertainment are important;
- 2. understand issues that impact the business of sports and entertainment;
- 3. define media;
- 4. understand the importance of media rights;
- 5. define publicity;
- 6. differentiate between publicity, public relations, media relations, and community relations;
- 7. create a press release;
- 8. create a press kit; and
- 9. simulate a press conference.



#### W. The student understands the strategies of successful entertainment marketing. The student is expected to:

- 1. discuss the different kinds of entertainment distribution;
- 2. identify strategies to market entertainment products; and
- 3. explain the promotional value of entertainment awards.

#### X. The student develops technology skills. The student is expected to:

- 1. use technology as a tool to research, organize, evaluate, and communicate information.
- 2. use digital technologies (computers, PDAs, media players, GPSs, etc.), communication/networking tools, and social networks appropriately to access, manage, integrate, evaluate, and create information to successfully function in a knowledge economy.
- 3. demonstrate utilizing current and new technologies specific to the program of study, course, and/or industry; and
- 4. apply a fundamental understanding of the ethical/legal issues surrounding the access and use of information technologies.



## **Practicum in Marketing**

 General requirements. This course is recommended for students in Grade 12. The practicum course is a paid or unpaid capstone experience for students participating in a coherent sequence of career and technical education courses in the Marketing Career Cluster. Prerequisites include any two of the following Level II courses: Advertising, Fashion Marketing, Social Media Marketing, or Sports and Entertainment Marketing. Students shall be awarded one credits for successful completion of this course.

#### 2. Introduction.

- A. Career and technical education instruction provides content aligned with challenging academic standards and relevant technical knowledge and skills for students to further their education and succeed in current or emerging professions.
- B. The Marketing Career Cluster focuses on planning, managing, and performing marketing activities to reach organizational objectives.
- C. Practicum in Marketing is a series of dynamic activities that focus on the customer to generate a profitable exchange. Students will gain knowledge and skills that help them to be proficient in one or more of the marketing functional areas associated with distribution, financing, marketing information management, pricing, product planning, promotion, purchasing, risk management, and selling skills. Students will integrate skills from academic subjects, information technology, interpersonal communication, and management training to make responsible decisions. The practicum course is a paid or unpaid experience for students participating in a coherent sequence of career and technical courses in marketing.
- D. Students will participate in a Career Preparation Work-Based Learning experience in this course, which includes paid or unpaid internship, pre-apprenticeship, or apprenticeship experiences relevant to the program of study.
- E. Students are encouraged to participate in extended learning experiences such as career and technical student organizations and other leadership or extracurricular organizations.

#### 3. Knowledge and skills.

- A. The student demonstrates professional standards/employability skills as required by business and industry. The student is expected to:
  - 1. communicate effectively with others using speaking, listening, and writing skills;
  - 2. demonstrate collaboration skills through teamwork;
  - 3. demonstrate professionalism by conducting oneself in a manner appropriate for the profession and workplace;
  - 4. demonstrate a positive, productive work ethic by performing assigned tasks as directed;
  - 5. demonstrate integrity by choosing the ethical course of action and complying with all applicable rules, laws, and regulations;
  - 6. demonstrate time-management skills such as prioritizing tasks, following schedules, and tending to goalrelevant activities in ways that use time wisely and optimize efficiency and results; and
  - 7. demonstrate leadership skills by participating in activities such as career and technical education student organizations.



#### B. The student knows the nature of business and shows its contribution to society. The student is expected to:

- 1. distinguish ways that businesses contribute to society;
- 2. explain the importance of social responsibility;
- 3. describe types of business activities;
- 4. explain the organizational design of businesses;
- 5. discuss the global environment in which businesses operate; and
- 6. depict factors that affect the business environment and how businesses can respond.

# C. The student demonstrates the importance of marketing and the functions of marketing. The student is expected to:

- 1. explain the marketing concept; and
- 2. describe each marketing function and how it relates to the marketing concept.
- D. The student analyzes the marketing mix, which involves a combination of the decisions about product, price, place, promotion, and people. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain how each component of the marketing mix contributes to successful marketing; and
  - 2. illustrate the importance of marketing strategies in the marketing mix.
- E. The student knows the concepts and strategies used to determine target markets and market identification. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain the importance of target markets;
  - 2. compare and contrast advantages and disadvantages of market segmentation and mass marketing;
  - 3. distinguish among geographic, demographic, psychographic, and behavioral segmentation; and
  - 4. explain the nature of marketing planning.

#### F. The student applies mathematical concepts in marketing. The student is expected to:

- 1. execute calculations involving money, time, space, materials, and data;
- 2. interpret charts and graphs to make informed marketing decisions;
- 3. use formulas and equations to determine price, profit, costs, and break-even point;
- 4. perform mathematical operations;
- 5. predict reasonable estimations;
- 6. create mathematical models from real-life situations; and
- 7. determine rate of change mathematically.

# G. The student knows how to use self-development techniques and interpersonal skills to accomplish marketing objectives. The student is expected to:

- 1. identify and practice effective interpersonal and team-building skills involving situations with coworkers, managers, and customers;
- 2. develop short- and long-term personal goals;
- 3. identify and use time-management principles; and
- 4. participate in leadership and career development activities.

#### H. The student applies information technology as an effective marketing tool. The student is expected to:

- 1. identify social media trends in marketing;
- 2. identify ways that technology impacts business;
- 3. apply web-search skills;



- 4. demonstrate word-processing skills;
- 5. use database applications; and
- 6. execute spreadsheet applications.
- 1. The student recognizes that careers are ever changing and require continual self-assessment, research, and preparation to develop and implement responsible decisions. The student is expected to:
  - 1. develop a working portfolio containing components such as resume, cover letter, thank you letter, references, letter of recommendation, and work samples;
  - 2. analyze personal social media accounts for potential employability; and
  - 3. demonstrate interview skills.
- J. The student knows the importance of emerging trends and technologies in marketing. The student is expected to:
  - 1. discuss trends affecting marketing; and
  - 2. research emerging technologies in marketing.
- K. The student knows the impact and value of diversity. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain how diversity affects marketing; and
  - 2. probe the impact of multiculturalism and multigenerationalism on marketing activities.
- L. The student knows that marketing begins with a working knowledge of economic concepts. The student is expected to:
  - 1. discuss characteristics of economic goods and services;
  - 2. identify economic needs and wants;
  - 3. explain the concept of utility and cite examples of types of utility;
  - 4. describe the function of prices in markets; and
  - 5. clarify how the interaction of supply and demand affects price.
- M. The student knows that a nation's economic system is determined by what is produced, how it is produced, and how it is distributed. The student is expected to:
  - 1. compare and contrast how economies answer basic economic questions;
  - 2. explain why most economies are mixed; and
  - 3. determine the relationship between government and business.
- N. The student knows that private enterprise is based on independent decisions by businesses and limited government involvement. The student is expected to:
  - 1. determine characteristics of a private enterprise system;
  - 2. explain the advantages and disadvantages of private enterprise; and
  - 3. identify examples of competitive business situations such as price or nonprice competition.
- O. The student knows that economic factors such as gross domestic product, standard of living, consumer price index, and unemployment figures help influence a company's marketing strategies. The student is expected to:
  - 1. identify economic measurements used to analyze an economy;
  - 2. research how economic measures are used in a market economy;
  - 3. describe the concept of price stability as an economic measure;
  - 4. interpret the measure of consumer spending as an economic indicator;



- 5. examine the impact of a nation's unemployment rates; and
- 6. describe the economic impact of inflation on business.
- P. The student knows that changes in the economy include prosperity, recession, depression, and recovery and are collectively referred to as the business cycle. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain the concept of business cycles; and
  - 2. describe the impact that phases of a business cycle have on the economy.
- Q. The student knows that distribution systems facilitate the movement of products. The student is expected to:
  - 1. understand channels of distribution;
  - 2. identify physical distribution activities; and
  - 3. examine costs associated with distribution.
- R. The student knows that marketers use investment and financial services to achieve goals and objectives. The student is expected to:
  - 1. illustrate types of financial services; and
  - 2. explain the purpose of a credit contract.
- S. The student knows the concept of pricing and strategies used in determining and adjusting price. The student is expected to:
  - 1. state goals of pricing;
  - 2. identify factors affecting pricing;
  - 3. explain how pricing affects product, place, and promotion decisions;
  - 4. compare and contrast pricing policies;
  - 5. calculate a product's price;
  - 6. describe the role of business ethics in pricing; and
  - 7. analyze legal considerations for pricing.
- T. The student understands the promotional concepts and strategies needed to communicate information about products, services, images, and ideas to achieve a desired outcome. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain the communication processes as used in promotional activities;
  - 2. evaluate types of promotion;
  - 3. understand the concept of promotional mix;
  - 4. define the role of promotion as a marketing function;
  - 5. describe the use of business ethics in promotion;
  - 6. explore the regulation of promotion;
  - 7. explain the nature of direct marketing channels;
  - 8. model communication channels used in sales promotion; and
  - 9. describe communication channels used in public relations activities.
- U. The student knows that advertising is the paid form of nonpersonal communication about an identified sponsor's products. The student is expected to:
  - 1. illustrate types of advertising media;
  - 2. differentiate between product and institutional advertising; and
  - 3. identify and evaluate elements of an advertisement.



- V. The student knows that business risk is the possibility of loss or failure. The student is expected to:
  - 1. categorize business risks; and
  - 2. interpret how various types of risks impact business activities.
- W. The student knows that marketers responsible for risk management follow a process to decide the best strategy to deal with each risk. The student is expected to:
  - 1. evaluate security precautions; and
  - 2. demonstrate knowledge of safety precautions in the workplace.
- X. The student knows what influences customers before they make a purchase. The student is expected to:
  - 1. differentiate among a feature and a benefit;
  - 2. compare and contrast between consumer and organizational buying behavior;
  - 3. determine customer needs and wants;
  - 4. classify buying motives; and
  - 5. analyze how customers and organizations apply the decision-making process.
- Y. The student knows how marketers use the selling process. The student is expected to:
  - 1. locate product information; and
  - 2. illustrate the sale process.
- Z. The student understands the techniques and strategies used to foster positive, ongoing relationships with customers to enhance company image. The student is expected to:
  - 1. explain the nature of positive customer relations;
  - 2. describe a customer service mindset;
  - 3. explain the management role in customer relations;
  - 4. identify a company brand promise;
  - 5. explore ways of reinforcing company image through employee performance; and
  - 6. describe the use of technology in customer relationship management.

# AA. The student understands a business's responsibility to know and abide by workplace laws, trade regulations, and ethical behavior that affect business operations. The student is expected to:

- 1. apply ethics to demonstrate trustworthiness;
- 2. explain the nature of business ethics;
- 3. describe legal issues affecting businesses;
- 4. defend the nature of human resources regulations;
- 5. explain the nature of workplace regulations such as Occupational Safety and Health Administration and statutes such as the Americans with Disabilities Act;
- 6. discuss employment relationships;
- 7. illustrate the nature of trade regulations; and
- 8. describe the impact of antitrust legislation.
- BB. The student applies ethical reasoning to a variety of workplace situations in order to make ethical decisions. The student is expected to:
  - 1. evaluate alternative responses to workplace situations based on personal or professional ethical responsibilities;
  - 2. identify personal and long-term workplace consequences of unethical or illegal behaviors;



- 3. investigate the most appropriate response to workplace situations based on legal and ethical considerations; and
- 4. demonstrate responsible behavior, honesty, integrity, and ethical work habits.
- CC. The student completes required training, education, and certification to prepare for employment in a particular career field. The student is expected to:
  - 1. identify training, education, and certification requirements for occupational choice; and
  - 2. participate in career-related training or degree programs.

#### DD. The student knows the elements and processes of product planning. The student is expected to:

- 1. explain the nature and scope of product planning;
- 2. relate product-mix strategies to meet customer expectations; and
- 3. define the product life cycle.

#### EE. The student develops technology skills. The student is expected to:

- 1. use technology as a tool to research, organize, evaluate, and communicate information.
- 2. use digital technologies (computers, PDAs, media players, GPSs, etc.), communication/networking tools, and social networks appropriately to access, manage, integrate, evaluate, and create information to successfully function in a knowledge economy.
- 3. demonstrate utilizing current and new technologies specific to the program of study, course, and/or industry; and
- 4. apply a fundamental understanding of the ethical/legal issues surrounding the access and use of information technologies.